Michigan Department of Treasury

498 {02/06)

Auditing Procedures Report

issued under P.A. 2 of 1968, as amended and P.A. 71 of 1810, as amended.

i.ocat Unit of Government Type Local Unli Name County
ClCounty Moty ®Twp [vilage  [IOther | Township of Michigamme, Michigan Marquetie
Fiscat Year End Opinion Date DCate Audit Report Submitted o State

3/31/07 8/20107 9/27/07

We affirm that:

We are certified public accountants licensed o practice in Michigan.

We further affirm the following material, “no” responses have been disclosed in the financial statements, including the notes, or in the
Management Letter {report of comments and recommendations).
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Check each applicable box below. (See instructions for further detail )

All required component units/funds/agencies of the local unit are included in the financial statements and/or disclosed in the
reporting entity notes to the financial stalements as necessary.

There are no accumulated deficits in one or more of this unit’s unreserved fund balances/unrestricted net assets
{P.A. 275 of 1980) or the local unit has not exceeded its budget for expenditures.

The local unit is in compliance with the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the Depariment of Treasury.
The local unit has adepted a budgst for all required funds.

A public hearing on the budget was held in accordance with State statute.

The local unit has not violated the Municipal Finance Act, an order issued under the Emergency Municipal Loan Act, or
other guidance as issued by the Local Audit and Finance Division.

The local unit has not been delinguent in distributing tax revenues that were collected for ancther taxing unit,
The local unit only holds depositsfinvestmenis that comply with statutory requirements.

The local unit has no ilfegal or unauthorized expenditures that came to our attention as defined in the Bulletin for
Audits of Local Units of Government in Michigan, as revised {see Appendix H of Builetin}.

There are no indications of defalcation, fraud or embezzlement, which came io our attention during the course of our audit
that have not been previously communicated to the Local Audit and Finance Division (LAFD). If there is such activity that has
not been communicated, piease submit a separate report under separaie cover.

The local unit is free of repeated comments from previous years.
The audit opinion is UNQUALIFIED.

The local unit has complied with GASB 34 or GASB 34 as modified by MCGAA Statement #7 and other generally
accepted accounting principles {GAAP).

The beard or council approves all invoices prior to payment as reguired by charier or statute.

To our knowledge, bank reconciliations that were reviewed were performed timely.

If a local unit of government {authorities and commissions included) is operating within the boundaries of the audited entity and is not
included in this or any cther audit report, nor do they obtain a stand-alone audit, please encicse the name(s), address(es), and a

description{s) of the authority and/or commission.
I, the undersigned, certify that this statement is complete and accurate in all respects.

We have enclosed the following: Enciosed | Not Required (enter a brief justification)

Financial Statements

The letter of Comments and Recommendations

Qthear (Describe} D

Certified Public Accountant {Firm Name) Telephone Number

Anderson, Tackman, & Company, P.L.C. (908} 225-1166

Street Address

102 W. Washington Street, Suite 109 Marguette Mi 49855

City State Zip

Autho;?g

Printed Name License Number

Robert J. Downs, CPA 10983
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT

Honorabie Supervisor and Members of
The Township Board of Trustees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan
PO Box 220

Michigamme, Michigan 49861

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2007, which collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial statements as
fisted in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Township’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred o above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan as of March 31, 2007, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report to management dated
September 20, 2007 on our consideration of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan's internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 through 9 and budgetary comparison information on
pages 35 to 38 is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement

3
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Honorable Supervisor and Members of the Township Board of Trustees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Township of Michigamme, Michigan's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements
and schedules as listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for the purpose of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Arderson, 7acknanr & &m/mrg, e

Certified Public Accountants

September 20, 2007



Township of Michigamme, Michigan
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
Qur discussion and analysis of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan's financial performance provides an

overview of the Township's financial activities for the year ended March 31, 2005, Please read it in conjunction with
the financial statements, which begin on page 20.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Township's net assets were reported for the first time under GASB 34. As such, no comparisons with prior years
will be made. In future years, comparative information will be presented in various schedules throughout the MD&A.

= Net assets for the Township as a whole increased by $30,372 as a result of this year's operations. Net
assets of our business-type activities decreased by $(25,486), or 2 percent, and net assefs of our
governmental activities increased by $55,858, or 4 percent.

= During the year, the Township had expenses for governmental activities that were $442,860 which is more
than the $110,323 generated in program revenue sources.

= During the year, the Township had expenses for business-type activities that were $93,226 which is more
than the $63,027 generated in program revenue sources.

s The General Fund reported a net fund balance of $87,839. This is $7,118 more than the forecasted
increase of $1,000.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities (on pages 10 and 11) provide information about the activities of the Township as a whole and present a
longer-term view of the Township’s finances. Fund financial statements start on page 12. For governmental
aclivities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for the
future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Township’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the Township's most significant funds. The remaining
statements provide financial information about activities for which the Township acts solely as a trustee or agent for
the benefit of those outside the govermnment.

Reporting the Township as a Whole

Our analysis of the Township as a whole begins on page 6. One of the mostimportant questions asked about the
Township's finances is “Is the Township as a whole better off or worse off as & result of the year's activities”” The
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the Township as a whole and
about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include alf assets and liabifities using
the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These
two statements report the Township's net assets and changes in them. You can think of the Township's net assets
- the difference between assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the Township’s financial health, or financial
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Township's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as
changes in the Township's patron base and the condition of the Township’s capital assets, to assess the overall
financial health of the Township.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAURITED) (Continued)

In the Statement of Net Assels and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Township into two kinds of activities:

Governmental Activities - Most of the Township's basic services are reported here, including the
legisiative, elections, public safety, public works, recreation and culture, community and economic
development and general services and administration. Property taxes, charges for services and state
sources fund most of these activities.

Rusiness-Type Activities — The Township charges a fee to customers {o help it cover all or most of the cost
of certain services it provides. The Township's Sewer System activities are reported here.

Reporting the Township’s Most Significant Funds

Qur analysis of the Township's major funds begins on page 8. The fund financial statements begin on page 12 and
provide detailed information on the most significant funds — not the Township as a whole. Some funds are required
to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Township Board establishes many other
funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that itis meeting legal responsibilities
for using taxes, grants, and other money. The Township’s two kinds of funds - governmental and proprietary - use
different accounting approaches.

@

Governmental funds — Most of the Township's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available
for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted into cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Township's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Township's
programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities) and governmentat funds in a reconciliation which
follows the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds — When the Township charges customers for the services it provides — whether fo
outside customers or to other units of the Township — these services are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Praprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the Township’s enterprise funds (a component of
proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the govermnment-wide
statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

The Township as a Whole

Table | provides a summary of the Township's net assets as of March 31, 2007 compared to 2005.

Tahie 1
Net Assets
2007 2605

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Governmental  Business-Type Tetal Primary

Activilies Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Current and other assets $464,939 $233,552 $698,491 $338,013 $236,785 $574,798
Capital assets, net 1,659,124 1,309,556 2,968,680 1,788,258 1,381,418 3,169,677
Totat Assels 2,124,063 1,543,108 3,667,171 2,126,272 1,618,203 3,744 475
Current liabilities 48,119 28425 74,544 40,894 28,209 69,103
Mon-current liabllities 543,425 473,000 1,016,425 807,615 495 000 1,102,615
Total Liabitiies 589,544 501,425 1,090,969 848,569 523,209 1,171,718




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued)

2007 2006
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Governmental  Business-Type Total Primary
Aciivities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of refated debt $1,082,926 $825,558 $1,808 482 $1,148,845 $876,418 $2,025,263
Restricted - 142,956 142,956 - 131,059 131,059
Unrestricted (deficit) 451,593 7317 524,764 328,918 87,517 416,435
Total Net Assets $1,534,519 $1,041,683 $2,576,202 31,477,783 31,004,594 32572757

Net assets of the Township's governmental activities stood at $1,534,519. Unrestricted net assets—-the part of net
assets that could be used to finance day-to-day activities without constraints established by debt covenants,

enabling legislation, or other legal requirements stood at $451,593.

The $451,593 in unrestricted net assets of governmental activities represents the accumulated resulis of all past
years' operations. The operating results of the General Fund will have a significant impact on the change in

unrestricted net assets from year {o year.

The net assets of our business-type activities stood at $1,041,683. The Township can generally only use these net
assets to finance continuing operations of the Sewer System operations.

The results of this year's operations for the Township as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities (see
Table 2}, which shows the changes in net assets for fiscal year 2007 compared to 2005,

Table 2
Change in Net Assats
2007 2006
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Agtivities Government Activities Activities Government
Revenues

Program Revenues:
Charges for services $45,895 $63,027 $109,922 $143,657 $50,534 $203,191
Qperating Grants and Contributions 83,428 - 63,428 - - -

General Revenues:
Property taxes 287,160 - 297,160 271,752 274,752
State Scurces 30,315 - 30,315 29,758 - 28,758
Interest 8,615 4713 14,328 3,378 1,749 5124
Miscellaneous 51,314 - 51,314 41,544 - 41,544
Total Revenues 498,727 67,740 566,467 490,086 61,283 551,360

Program Expenses:
Legislative 12,952 12,952 18423 18423
General Services and administration 146,658 146,658 102,358 102,358
Pubiic Safety 96,240 96,240 79,004 79,004
Public Works 86,362 86,362 89,901 69,801
Health and Weifare 27.809 27,808 461 MeN
Community and Economic Development 2,712 - 2,712 1117 . 1,417
Recreation and Culture 28,761 - 28,761 23,963 23,963
Cther 17,125 B 17,125 17,532 - 17,532
Debt Service 24,250 24,260 5,699 - 5,699
Sewer system - 83,226 93,226 - 106,427 109427
Total Expenses 442 8BS §3,226 538,095 352,808 109,427 482,035
Increase (decreass) in net assets 55,858 (25,486) 30,372 137478 (48,144) 89,334
Net assets, beginning, 1,478 661 1,067 169 2,545,830 1,340,285 1,143,138 2483423
Net Assets, Ending $1,634,519 $1,041,683 $2,576,202 $1.477,763 $1,094,9%4 32572757

The Township's fotal revenues were $498,727. The total cost of all programs and services was $442,869, leaving
an increase in net assets of $55,858. Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and

business-type activities:



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) {Continued)
Governmental Activifies

Governmental Activities had a netincome of $55,858. This was due from a $63,012 gain from governmental funds,
reclassification of $64,994 from capital outlay to capital assets, record depreciation expense of $103,564, and
reclassifying principal portion on long term liabilities from debt expense of $31,416.

Business-type Activities
Business type activities had a net loss of $25,486, which is from not charging for depreciation expense o users,

THE TOWNSHIP'S FUNDS
As the Township completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on page 12)
reported a combined fund balance of $451,593, an increase of $63,012 from the beginning of the year.

The major reascn for this increase was the road funds $30,052 increase in fund balance.

General Fund Budgetary Highiights
Over the course of the year, the Township Board did not revise the budget.

Budget amendments were not done during the year due to simple oversight. The major differences in the budget
were due to budgeting payroll taxes verse personnel expense during the year. Employee and Employer payroll
taxes were budgeted in other expenditures and actual expenses for gross wages were recorded in the proper
departments. The Township also failed to budget for the acquisition of 2 voting machines which were acquired
from the State of Michigan through a federal grant.

With these adjustments, actual charges to expenditures were $49,413, more than the final amended budget.
Additionally, revenues were $56,531 more then the final budget projection.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal 2007, the Township had $2,926,752 invested in a variety of capital assets including land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, and other equipment. (See table 3 below)

Table 3
Capital Assels at Year-End
2007 2005
Governmentat Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totalg Aclivities Activities Tolals
Land $647,500 $58,724 $706,224 $647,500 $58,724 §706,224
Land improvements - - - - - -
Buildings and improvements 883,426 1,250,832 2,134,261 947,930 1,322,604 2,270,653
Eguipment and fumnishings 128,185 - 128,185 192,800 - 192,800
TOTALS $1659,124 $1,300,556 $2,968,680 £1,788,25% $1,381,418 $3,169,677

During the current year, the Township acquired two voting machines through a federal grant for $12,584,

purchased turnout gear for the fire department in the amount of $52,410, had two disposals totaling $65,000, and

%ecorded depreciation expense of $103,564. The Sewer fund record depreciation expense in the amount of
35,931,



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) (Continued)

Debt
At year-snd, the Township had $1,060,198 in bonds and notes outstanding as depicted in Table 4 below.
Tabie 4
Qutstanding Debt af Year-End
2008 2005
Governmental Business-Type Govermnmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals Agtivities Activities Totals
Bonds § 20688 $484000 § 486886 $ 41 $ 505,000 $509,137
Loans 573,512 - 5735812 §35,276 - £35,276
TOTALS $ 576,198 $484000  $10680.198 $ 635,414 $505000 51,144,414

During the year the Township recorded principle payments of $42,416.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS
In preparing the Township’s budget for the year ending March 31, 2008, the Township considered the following
issues:

e The fiscal 2008 budget was based on 2007 estimated year end balances and kept fairly stable for all
activity.

CONTACTING THE TOWNSHIP'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed fo provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Township's finances and to show the Township's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have guestions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Township of Michigamme,
P.0. Box 220, Michigamme, M| 49861,



TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Marck 31, 2007

Primary Government

Goversmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and equivalents 429,790 $ 29,810 459,500
Cash and equivalents - restricted - 142 958 142,956
Receivables {net} 35,149 80.788 95,935
Prepaid Expense - - -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 464,538 233,552 588,491
Non-current assets:
Capital assets being depreciated 1,659,124 1,309,556 2,968,680
Total Capitai Assets 1,659,124 1,309,556 2,968,680
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,858,124 1,309,556 2,968,680
TOTAL ASSETS 2,124,063 1,543,108 3,667,171
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 6,488 182 6,670
Accrued liabilities 6,858 - 6,858
Deferred revenue - - -
Accrued interest - 17,243 17,243
Current portion of notes payable 32773 11,000 43,773
Other current habilities - - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 46,119 28 425 74,544
Non-current Liabiities:
Compensated absences - - -
Notes payable 543,425 473,000 1,016,425
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 543,425 473,000 1,016,425
TOTAL LIABILITIES 589,544 501,425 1,090,969
NET ASSETS
Investad in capital assets net of related debt 1,082,925 825,556 1,908,482
Restricted for:
Debt Service - 142 956 142,956
Unrestricted 451,593 73,171 524,764
TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,534,519 5 1,041,683 2,576,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thase financial statements.
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TOWRNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

March 31, 2007

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds 3 451,583

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of nat assels are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds
Cost of Capital Assets  § 3,139,583
Accumulated Deprecaticn of Assets (1,480,469) 1,659,124

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payabile
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Current portion of notes payable 32,773
Notes payable 843 425
{576,198)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 1534519

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis,
13



143

‘SIUBWISIENE [BoURUY asaU] Jo Yed [eiBajul ue ele sejou Buliuedwasoe ay |

4002 "LE UddB pepul Jeek oy 1oy
FONYTVE ONNA NESTADNYHD ANV STHNLIANIIXH ‘SHNNIATY 40 INIWILVLS
SANNS TVINFANYHIAOCD

NYDIHDIN ‘TWINVYOIHOIA 40 dIHSNMOL

CBG'LGY ) 21£°/8 $ Z05'G $ Ge8'0L $ 00592 evg Ll BERZE ¢ MVIA 4O NI ‘FONVIVE aNNd
185'88¢ cee'as 168"y kAR 4 8£9'99 061" 1L 12262 leah jo Buluubag ‘soueeq pun
21089 526'01 1611 Y8 298’6 zZ50'08 glLi'e AONVYIVE ANND N ZONYHD
- - - - - - - {s3SN) §308N0S
ONIDONYNIA ¥IHL0 V.10l
- - - - - w - {(3n0) sigysue ]
- - - - - - - Ul SteysuRL )
- - - - - - - £pa800Jd ueoT
($380) SAJUNOS ONISNYNIL HBHLO
FARIRO] G860 LGl P87 298'6 Z§0'0e 2i1's SHUNLIANIGXT (M3aNN)
HIAD SANNIAZY 40 8830X3
GLL'GEY 918’62 81405 olLy'LlL G8L'ELL 118'l L1281 SIAUNLIANEAXE TYL0L
960'¢G - 850°0F - 8066 - - a%IAles 1ae(
PEB PO - - - alLv'es - ¥e6'71 Aepnoy enden
GeL'llL - - - - - SZi'4L suoRoun 4 JaUlo
99e's1 - - OLy'eL - - 9/6°, @InUNY pue UonEalasy
ZLLT - - - - - eLi'e UBIdOPAS(] SHUOUODT pUE AYURLLILLOT
8094 - - - 609'. - - SUBHBAA PUB glEaH
ze8've glLe'ss - - . L8l geg's SHIOAA DR
851 P - - - BGL'FY - - Aajes ogang
LGE'azL - 8G9 - - - £6%'1T) WBULHLIBADL) (BIDUBD
ZG6TL - - - - - 78621 anje|sifien
SSIHNLIGNAIX
121867 L0Z'98 19816 YGeE i IF9'ETL £oR'LE G68'061 SUNNIAIY IVLOL
PP60S 0cL'0L $99'G L8 £e9'L 851 zel'Le anuaAsy JeUyio
G198 - - 05l - - GOV’ Sjusy pue 1satauy
. . - - - - - Shalo4 pue sauid
G689 L89'CE - - 188l - L0g'S $901MEG Jo) sebley)
) . - R w - - S30IN0G |BDOT
GLE0E - - - - o981 621'62 $801N0G 91BIG
8Zr'co - - - Pre0G - ¥85°C1 S82UN0G {BISPA4
Gie - - - - - [4TAS SHLS 4 PUE SBSUBDLT
0oL'i6e £ 0BE'ES % £0Z'GP g Lil'EL $ AT A BLZ0E rLe'zoL $ SEXE |
SSENNIATY
SPUN pun.g punz pung pung pungd puny
IRILSIIIIBA0E) abegien Busppng Wed Al peoy lessuen
2304,



TOWRNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

RECONCHJIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TC THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds repori capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is
the amcunt by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the
current period.

Capital outlays
Depreciation expense

Repayment of loan principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds but repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net assets.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$

64,994
(103,564)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

SEWER FUND
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
March 31, 2007

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and eguivalents
Cash and eguivalents - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other funds
Prepaid expense
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Non-current Assets:
Capital assets
Accumutated depreciation
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to other funds
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of long-term debt
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-curreni Liabilities:
Bond payable
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
invested in capital assets net of related debt
Restricted - debt service

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

Totai

& 29,810
142,956
60,786

233.552

1,855,272
(545,718)

1,309,556

1,543,108

182
17,243
11,000

28,425

473,000

473,000

501,425

825,556

142,956

73,471

$ 1,041,683

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGANMME, MICHIGAN
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEWER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services (net) $ 83,027
Other operating revenue -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 63,027
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operating expenses 22,810
Depreciation 35,931
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 58,741
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 4,286
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income 4713
Interest expense (34,485)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING
REVENUES {EXPENSES) (29,772)
INCOME (L.OSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (25,486)
Transfer in -
Transfer (out) -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (25,488)
Net assets, beginning of year 1,067,168
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 1,041,683

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these financial statements.
17



TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEWER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

_ Total

CASH FLOWS FROM GPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from fees and charges for services $
Cash payments fo employees for services

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

79,233
(6,203)
{16,183)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

56,837

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Increase (decrease) Interfund activity

Cash payments for capital assets

Interest payments on bonds

182

(34,87“;)
(11,000)

Principal payments on bonds
NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

{45,699)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in restricted cash
Interest income

4713

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

4,713

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) iN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

15,855
13,955

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR §

29,810

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) 3

4,286

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense
increase (decrease) in accounts payable
increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities

35,931

16,620

NET ADJUSTMENTS

52,551

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES §

56,837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

mMarch 31, 2007

Agency
Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 12,924
Due from other funds 1,755
TOTAL ASSETS 3 14,679
LIABHITIES:
Due to other funds 3 12,263
Due to others 2,416
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 14,679

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
19



TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2007
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The financial statements of the Township have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of these accounting policies established in GAAP and
used by the Township are described below.

(1) REPORTING ENTITY

The Township's financial statements present the Township (the primary government). In evaluating the Township
as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units (traditionally separate reporting
units) for which the Township may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be includable within the
Township’s financial statements.

(2) BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Township's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Township as & whole) and
fund financial statements (reporting the Township's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements categorize primary activities as either govemmental or business-type. The Township’s legistative, public
works, public safety, community and economic development, recreation and culture and general services and
administration are classified as governmental activities. The Township's Sewer System is classified as business-

type activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities columns are
presented on a consolidated basis by column and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The Township’s net
assets are reported in three parts - invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and
unrestricted net assets. The Township first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the Township’s
functions and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general government revenues
(property, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.) The
Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses {including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating
and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity.
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.  The net costs {by function or business-type activity) are normally
covered by general revenue.

The govemnment-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Township as an enfity and the change in the
Township's net assets resuiting from the current year's activities. For the most part, the effect of Interfund activities
has been removed from these statements.

20



NOTE A ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
{3 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial fransactions of the Township are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities,
reserves, fund equity, revenues and expendituresfiexpenses. The various funds are reported by generic
classification within the financial statements.

The following fund types are used by the Township:

Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial
position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a
description of the governmental funds of the Township:

General Fund - General Fund is the general operating fund and, accordingly, itis used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue— Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Proprietary Funds
The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net assets,

financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of the Township:

s Enterprise Funds — Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the governing body is
that the cost (expenses, including depreciation} of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b} where the goveming body
has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type
activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34
sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund
category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.

The Township reports the following major governmental funds:

¢ The General Fund is the Township's primary operating fund. it accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):.

L]

The Road Fund is used io account for the financial resources to be used for the expenditures related to
road improvements.

@

The Fire Fund is used to account for the operations of the fire and EMS department.

The Park Fund is used to account for the financial resources to be used for the expenditures related  the
maintenance of the park.

The Building Fund is used to account for the maintenance and construction of the townhall,

]

o The Garbage Fund is used to account for the refuse collection system.
The Township reports the following major proprietary funds:

e The Sewer Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses for the operation of a sewer system.

(4) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounis
and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the

measurement focus applied.

Accrual
Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary

and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and simifar ifems are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Al enterprise funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting
Principles Board {APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1988, unless those pronouncements confict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. Their revenues are recognized when they
are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the
modified basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when they are both measurable and available. “Available’
means collectible within the current period or within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal pericd. Expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. However,
debt service expenditures, compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is
due.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued):
{5) FINANCIAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting — The Township follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

a.  The Township Supervisor submits to the Township Board of Trustees a proposec operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following Aprii 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

b.  Numerous opportunities exist for public comment during the budget process including at least
two formal public hearings conducted at the Township Hall to obtain taxpayer comment.

c.  Pursuant to statute, prior to March 31 of each year the budget for the ensuing year is legally
enacted through adoption of an Annual General Appropriations Act.

d.  The general statute governing Township budgetary activity is the State of Michigan Uniform
Budgeting and Accounting Act. In additional to the provisions of the said Act and Board policy,
general statements concerning the Board's intent regarding the administration of each year's
budget are set out in the Annual General Appropriations Act. The Township Board of
Trustees, through policy action, specifically directs the Supervisor not to authorize or
participate in any expenditure of funds except as authorized by the Annual General
Appropriations Act. The Board recognized that, in addition to possible Board sanctions for
willful disregard of this poticy, State statutes provide for civil liability for violations of the Annual
General Appropriations Act.

e.  The Supervisor is authorized by means of Township policy to make certain transfers:

1. The Supervisor receives a request for a budget transfer from the head of the department
whose budget s to be affected. Such request must specify the necessity for the transfer,
the account name andfor groups(s) and amount to be affected within prescribed
limitations. Transfers in excess of those limitations must be approved by the Board of
Trustees.

2. The following considerations must be reviewed in determination of transfer approvals.
a. Are the transfers consistent with the intent of the Board of Trustees in adopting
the annual budget?
b. Will the transfer maintain the financial integrity of the Township?
Will the transfer provide a reasonable solution to the Departmental operating
problem?

Considering the above, the Supervisor will then decide whether or not the transfer should be
made.

Supplemental appropriations are submitted to and reviewed by the Supervisor and submitted

to the Township Board of Trustees for their review and approval. If approved, they are
implemented by the Supervisor through a budget revision.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(Continued):

f. The Township adopts its Annual Budget on a deparimental basis. Al each level of detail,
governmental operations are summarized into expenditure account groups. Funding sources
are also identified and adopted at each level of detail. Budgetary controls exist at the most
detailed level adopted by the Board of Trustees, i.e., department for analytical purposes. A
detailed line item breakdown is prepared for each program. Accounting, i.e., classification
control, resides at the line item detail level.

g.  Budgets for the General Funds were adopted in substance on an accrual basis which is
consistent with generally accepted accounting principies. Budgeted amounts as reported in
the Financial Report are as originally adopted and/or amended by the Township Board of
Trustees.

Cash Equivalents and Investments — For the purposes of balance sheet classification and the statement of cash
flows, cash and equivalents consist of demand deposits, cash in savings, money market accounts and short-term
certificates of deposit with original maturity of three months or less. Investments are carried at fair value.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. sireets,
bridges, and sidewalks), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities coiumns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Township as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five years.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available,
Donated capital assets are valued at their fair value on the date donated. Depreciation on all exhaustible capital
assets is charged as an expense against their operations in government-wide statements and proprietary financial
statements. Accumulated depreciation is reported on government-wide and proprietary statement of net assets.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 15 years
Building, structures and improvements 10-40 years
Equipment 5 years
Water and Sewage System 20-50 years
Vehicles 5 years
Infrastructure 20-50 years

Long-Term Liabilities — In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities and business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. In the fund financial statements, the

face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.

Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting of certain assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures.

Actual results may differ from estimated amounts.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued):

Properiy Taxes - Property taxes are levied as of December 1 of each year and are due by the Iast day of the foliowing
March. The taxes are collected by the local unit and periodically remitted to the third parties during the collection period.

Interfund Activity — nterfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services
provided, deemed 1o be al market or near market rates, are freated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost
as a result of the reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as fransfers. Transfers between
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

Cash Equivalents

The following is a reconciliation of cash and investments for both the unrestricted and restricted assets for the
primary government from the Statement of Net Assets:

Primary Proprietary Fiduciary
Government Funds Funds Total

Unrestricted;
Cash and cash equivalents $429,7% $20,810 $12,524 $472.524
Investments - - - -
429,750 29,810 12,924 472524

Rastricted:

Cash and cash equivalenis - 142,966 142,956
investments - - - -
- 142,856 - 142,956
TOTALS $429,790 $172,766 $12,924 $615,480

Custodial Credit Risk ~ Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township's deposits may not be returned to it.
State law does not require and the Township does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The carrying
amounts of the primary government and fiduciary fund’s deposits with financial institutions were $615,480 and the
bank balance was $661,404. The bank balance is categorized as follows:

Amount insured by the FDIC or uncollaterafized with securities held by
the Township in ifs name $100,000
Amount collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions
trust department in the Township's name:
Collateralized and uninsured 561,404

TOTAL $661,404

Investments
As of March 31, 2007, the Township did not have any investments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the Township's
investments. The Township does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means
of managing its exposure fo fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {Continued):

Credit Risk

Michigan statutes {Act 196, PA 1997) authorize the Township to invest in bonds, other direct obligations and
repurchase agreements of the United States, certificates of deposits, savings accounts, deposit accounts or
receipts of a bank which is a member of the FDIC and authorized to operate in this state, commercial paper rated
at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications established by not less than two standard rating
services and matures within 270 days from date of purchase, bankers' acceptances of the United States banks,
obligations of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions, external investment pools, and cerfain mutual
funds. Michigan law prohibits security in the form of collateral, surety bond, or another form for the deposit of

public money.

The Township has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. The Township's
investments are in accordance with statutory authority.

NOTE C ~ INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN AND TRANSFERS OUT:
There were no interfund transfers in 2007,
NOTE D = INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES:

The Interfund transfers for the year relating fo un-reimbursed expenses are as follows:

o PETOOTHEREUNDS. ]
General Road
Fund Fund Totals
Tax Coilection Fund $12,263 $ - $ 12,263
Community Building Fund - 50,000 50,0600
Sewer Fund 182 . 182
Trust & Agency Fund 1,765 - 1,795
Total $ 14,200 $ 50,000 $ 64,200
NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS:
A summary of the capital assets of the Governmental Activities is as follows:
Balance at Balance at
Aprit 1, 2006 Additions Disposals March 31, 2007
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Land § 847,500 - $- $ 647,500
Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 847,500 - - 847,500
8uildings and improvements 1,735,599 - - 1,735,599
Fumiiure and equipment 756,500 64,004 {65,000 756,454
Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 2,492,099 64,994 (65,000) 2,492 093
Less Accumuiated Depreciation:
Building and improvements (819,906} (32,265) - (852,170)
Furniture and equipment {622,000) {71,299) 65,000 (628,299)
Totat Accmulated Depreciation {1.441,906) (103,564) 85,000 {1,480,469)
Governmental Activifies Capital Assets, Nat $1,607,694 $ {38,570) $- $1,659,124
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NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

Depreciation expenses for the governmental activities were charged to the following functions and activities of the
primary government:

General and Administrative $ 20,407
Public Safety 52,082
Public Works 1,50G
Health and Welfare 20,200
Recreation and Culture 8,375

Total  $ 103,564

A summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets is as follows:

Balance at Batance at
April 1, 2008 Additions Dispesals March 31, 2007
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

iand $58,724 $- $- $58,724
Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 58,724 - - 58,724
Buildings and improvements 1,796,548 - - 1,796,548
Equipment - - - -
Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 1,796,548 . - 1,796,548

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements {509,785) {35,931) - (545,716)
Equipment - - - -
Total Accumulated Depreciation {509,785) (35,931 - (545,716)
Business-Type Capital Assets, Net $1,345487 $(35,931) $- $1,309,556

Depreciation expense for the business-type activities was charged to the following functions and activities of the
primary government;

Business-Type Activities:

Sewer Fund $35,631
Total Depreciation Expense — Business-Type Activities $35,831

NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT:

SCHEDULE COF MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL BOND
March 31, 2007

May November
Principal interest Interest Total
2007-2008 $ 817 $ 102 $ 7 $ 980
2008-2009 889 71 37 997
2008-2010 979 37 . 1,016
TOTALS $ 2,685 $210 $ 108 $ 3,003

The Bonds originally issued for $9,738 and dated September 11, 1991 mature annually as scheduled above and
bears a variable interest rate.
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued):
SCHEDULE OF FIRE TRUCK LOAN
March 31, 2007

May
Principal interest Total
2007-2008 $ 6,380 $ 3228 & 9,608
2008-2009 8,715 2,893 9,668
2009-2010 7,068 2,540 9,608
2010-2011 7,438 2,169 9,608
2011-2012 7,829 1,779 5,608
2012-2013 8,241 1,367 8,608
2013-2014 8,673 935 9,608
2014-2015 9,131 477 9,608
TOTALS 361476 $ 15,388 $ 76,864
The Loan originally issued for $75,000 and dated September 23, 2004 mature annually on April 1 above and bears a 5.25% interest rate.
Building Loan
March 31, 2007
April 1
Principal Interest Total

2007-2008 $25,576 $20,481 346,057

2008-2009 26,599 19,458 46,057

2008-2010 459,863 18,395 478,258

TOTALS $512,038 $58,334 $570,372

The foan criginally issued for $600,000 and dated April 1, 2003 mature annually on April 1 above, with a balloon payment in
2009 and bears a 4%interest rate.

SEWER REVENUE BOND
March 31, 2007
April 1 September 1
Principal Interest Interest Total

2007-2008 $6,000 $14,749 $14,535 335,284
2008-2009 7,000 14,535 14,286 35,821
2008-2010 7,000 14,286 14,036 35,322
2010-2011 8,000 14,036 13,751 35,787
20112012 10,000 13,751 13,395 37,148
2012-2013 11,600 13,395 13,003 37,398
2013-2014 12,000 13,003 12,576 37,579
2014-2015 13,300 12,576 12,113 37,689
2015-2016 14,000 12,113 11614 37,727
2016-2017 15,000 11,614 11,079 37,693
2017-2018 16,000 11,079 10,510 37,589
2018-2019 17,000 10,610 9,904 37414
2019-2020 18,000 9,904 8,263 37167
2020-2021 20,000 9,263 §,550 37,813
2021-2022 21,000 8,550 7.802 37.352
2022-2023 22,000 7,802 7,018 36,820
2023-2024 23,000 7,018 8,199 36,217
2024-2025 24,000 8,199 5,344 35,543
2026-2026 25,000 5,344 4453 34,797
2026-2027 25,000 4,453 3,563 33,015
2027-2028 25,000 3,563 2,872 31,235
2028-2029 25,000 2572 1,781 26,453
2026-2030 25,000 1,781 890 27,671
2030-2031 25,000 880 - 25,890

TOTALS $ 414,000 § 223,088 $ 208,337 $845423

The Bond was originally issued for $446,000 on Sepiember 10, 1991. Bond Payments are due Semi-annually, Aprit 1
(principal plus interest) and September 1 (interest), with an interest rate of 7.125%.
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT: (Continusd)

SEWER SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BOND
March 31, 20687

April 1 September 1
Principal Interest [nterest Total

2007-2008 $5.000 $2,494 $2.316 $9,810
2008-2009 5,000 2,316 2,138 9,454
2009-2010 5,600 2,138 1,858 9,097
2010-2011 5,000 1,959 1,781 8,740
2011-2012 5,000 1,781 1,803 8,384
2012-2013 5,000 1,603 1,425 8,028
2013-2014 5,000 1,425 1,247 7.872
2014-2015 5,000 1,247 1,069 7,316
2015-2016 5,000 1,088 891 6,960
2018-2017 5,600 891 713 6,604
2017-2018 5,000 713 534 8,247
2018-2019 5,000 534 356 5,890
2019-2020 5,000 356 178 5,634
20202021 5,000 178 - 5178

TOTALS $70,000 $18,704 $16,210 $ 104,914

The Bond was originally issued for $150,000 on September 10, 1991. Bond Payments are due Semi-annually,
April 1 (principal plus interest) and September 1 (interest), with an inferest rate of 7.125%.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the non-current liabilities (excluding compensated absences}
are as foliows:

Year Governmental Business Type Total
2007-2008 $32,773 $11,000 $43,773
2008-2009 34,203 12,000 46,203
2008-2010 467 910 12,000 479,910
20106-2011 7,439 13,000 20,439
2011-2012 7,829 15,000 22,826
2012-2013 8.241 16,000 24,241
2013-2014 8,673 17,000 25,673
2014-2015 9,130 18,000 27,130
2015-2016 - 14,060 15,060
2016-2017 - 26,000 20,000
2017-2018 - 21,060 21,000
2018-2018 - 22,000 22,000
2019-2020 - 23,000 23,006
2020-2021 - 25,000 25,006
2021-2022 - 21,000 21,000
2022-2023 - 22,000 22,000
2023-2024 - 23,000 23,000
2024-2025 - 24,000 24,000
2025-2028 - 25,600 25,600
2026-2027 - 25,600 25,000
2027-2028 - 25,600 25,600
2028-2029 - 25.000 25,000
2025-2030 - 25,000 25,000
2030-2031 - 25,600 25,000

Totat $576,198 $484.000 $1,080,198
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT: (Continued)

April 1, 2008 Additions Subtractions March 31, 2007
Govemnmental Activities:
This debt reprasents the Township's share of the Bond to
form the Joint Venlure in the Marquetie County Solid Waste
Management Authority, $3.448 5- $762 $2,888
Fire Truck Loan 87,537 - 8,062 81,475
Building Loan 536,629 - 24,592 512037
Total Governmental Activities 607 614 - 31416 576,198
Business-Type Activities:
Revenue Bond ~ for criginal sewer system 420,000 - 8,000 414,000
Special Assessment Bond - for original sewer system 75,000 - 5,000 76,000
Total Busingss-Type Activities 485 000 - 11,000 484,000
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
LONG-TERM DEBT $1,102,614 - $42.418 $1,080,198

NOTE F - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED NET ASSETS:

The Sewer Fund has reserved net assets totaling $142,956 which represents the balance available to pay down
debt.

NOTE G ~ PROPERTY TAXES:

The Local Governmental Unit property tax is levied on each December 1ston the taxable valuation of property (as
defined by State statutes) located in the Local Governmental Unit as of the preceding December 31%,

Although the Local Governmental Unit 2006 ad valorem tax is levied and collectible on December 1, 2006, it is the
Local Governmental Unit's policy to recognize revenue from the current tax levy in the current year when the
proceeds of this levy are budgeted and made “available” for the financing of operations. “Available” means
collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of

the current period (60} days.

The 2006 taxabie vaiuation of the Local Governmental Unit totaled $26,475,008, on which ad valorem taxes levied
consisted of 2.9748 mills for the Local Governmental Unit operation purposes, 3.4376 mills for garbage, road and
park operations, 1.8965 mills for fire and emergency management service operations and 1.6406 mills for the
community building. These amounts are recognized in the General Fund, Garbage Fund, Road Fund, Park Fund
and Building fund financial statements as revenue.

NOTE H - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Risk Management - The Township is exposed {o various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage fo, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Township has
obtained commercial insurance to handie its risk of loss.

NOTE | - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS:

The Township has variances with regards to expenditures over appropriations in their funds as of March 31, 2007.

Unfavorable
Budget Actual Variance
General Fund:
Elections $ 2,000 $ 3,355 $ 1,355
Assessor 4,060 9,844 5,844
Clerk 7,100 16,088 2,988
Board of Review 800 1,320 520
Town hall and grounds 37,364 77,767 40,403
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NOTE | - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS {Continued):

Unfavorabls
Budget Actual Variance
Planning Commission $1,500 $2712 $1,212
Senior Center 800 940 140
Library 2,700 3,881 1,181
Museum 3,000 3,155 165
Capital Qutlay - 12,584 12,584
Special Revenue:
Fire Depariment Fund -
Fire Depariment 38,960 44,158 5,198
Capital Qutlay . 52,410 52,410
Building Fund -
Building 2,266 4,658 2,392
Garbage Fund -
Sanitation 53,500 75,218 15,716

NOTE J - JOINT VENTURE:

in June 1988, Michigamme Township joined with 19 other municipalities to create the Marquette County Solid
Waste Management Authority ("Authority"}. The Authority was created pursuant to Act 233 of 1955 1o plan for,
acquire, construct, finance, operate, maintain, repair and dispose of, whether by sale, lease, or otherwise, an Act
641 fandfill, including all improvements, appurtenances, easements, accessory facilities and structures, equipment,
and other property part of or incidental to the landfill sufficient to satisfy the requirements of, and function as a solid
waste disposal area under Act 641 and to establish and administer procedures providing for the separation,
recycling, recovery, conversion of solid waste to energy and for the disposition of such energy output and disposal
at the site of Non-toxic Type 1l and Type il Sofid Waste, to fund all of the above activities, to charge and collect
fees in connection with the operation of the fandfill and to provide for the reimbursement with receipt of bond
proceeds to the City of Marquette and Sands Township of their respective costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the establishment and administration of the Solid Waste Authority and the System Facility.

The Authority is governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of one (1) member (who is the Chairperson of the
board of Trustees) designated by the Sands Township Supervisor on behalf of the Sands Township, two (2)
members designated by the Marquette City Commission; three (3) members designated by the Marquette County
Board of Commissioners, and one resident of the City of Marquette appointed by the other 6 Authority Board
members. All decisions of the Board are made by majority vote, consisting of at least four of its members.

The Township's share of assets, liabilities, and fund equity is approximately 1 percent. Summary financial
information as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, is as follows:

Total Assets $13,550,304
Total Liabilities 2,135,432
Total Equity 11,369,872
Total Operating Revenues 2,368,781
Total Operating Expenses 2625815
Net income (loss) {257,034)

The City of Marquette has pledged its full faith and credit for the Marquette County Solid Waste Management
Authority Bonds, Series 1988. These bonds are payable from the net revenues of the Authority, as well as by each
member of the Authority to the extent of their pro rata share of the principal and interest requirements on the bonds.
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NOTE K- DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN:

The Township offers its emplovees deferred compensation Plans created in accordance with the Infernal Revenue
Code, Section 457. The Plans are availabie {o all employees. The Plans permit them to defer a portion of thelr
current earnings until the employee’s termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable future.

Due fo changes in the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan’s assets are considered to be property of the Plan’s
participants and are no longer subject to the Township's general creditors. Therefore, the Plan is no longer
presented in these statements.

The Plan’s participants have the right to designate how the funds will be invested. Accordingly, the Township has
no liability for losses under the Plan. The Plan's assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the Plan's
participants and their beneficiaries.

The Township's Plan is administered by American Express (full time employees} and Wells Fargo Mid America
Retirement Solutions (part time employees), and as Plan Administrators, agree o hold harmless and indemnify the
Board, it's appointed and elected officers and participating employees from any loss resulting from American
Express or Wells Fargo or their agents’ failure to perform their duties and services pursuant to the American
Express or Wells Fargo program.
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REVEMNUES:
Taxes
iicenses and Parmits
Federal Sources
State Sources
Local Sources
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeils
Interest and Renis
Other Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Legisiative
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare

TOTAL REVENUES

Community and Economic Development

Recreation and Culture

Other Functions
Capital Quitay
Debt Service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES QVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES)

CHANGE N FUND BALANCE

Fund balance, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 34, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis {Negative)

§ 86,500 3 86,500 102,314 15,814
500 500 370 (130}

- - 12,584 12,584
29,800 29,800 29,129 (571}
5,300 5,300 5,201 1

2,500 2,500 9,465 6,965

9,764 9,764 31,782 21,968
134,3&4 134,264 190,805 56,531
15,800 15,800 12,952 2.848
74,564 74,564 121,593 (47,029}
8,600 8,000 7,835 165
1,500 1,500 2,712 {1,212)
8,500 6,500 7976 (1.478)
27,000 27,000 17,125 9,875
- - 12,584 (12,684)
133,364 133,364 182,777 (49,413)
1,000 1,000 8,118 7,118

1,000 1,600 8118 7.118
78,721 79,721 79,721 -

3 80,721 $ 80,721 87,839 7,118
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHICAMME, MICHIGAN
ROAD FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Budgeied Amounis GAAP Positive
Qriginal Final Basls {Negative}
REVENUES: ' '
Taxes $ 26,886 $ 26,886 $ 30,218 5 3,333

Licenses and Permits - " R
Federal Sources - - - N
State Sources - - 1,186 1,186
Local Sources - - .

Charges for Services - - - .
Fines and Forfeits - - - -
Interest and Rents - - - .

Other Revenue - - 458 458
TOTAL REVENUES 26,886 26,886 31,863 4,877

EXPENDITURES:
Legisiative - - - -
Judicial - - - -
Elections - - - -

General Government - - -
Public Safety - - -
Public Works 12,500 12,500 1,81 10,689
Health and Welfare - - - -
Community and Econemic Development - - - -
Recreation and Culture - - - -
Qther Functions - - -

Capital Outlay - - .
Debt Service - - - .

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,500 12,500 1,811 10,689

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 14,386 14,386 30,052 15,666

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Loan proceeds - - - w
Transfers in - - - .
Transfers {out} - - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES) _ - - - ;

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 14,388 14,386 30,052 15,666

Fund balance, beginning of year 147,496 147,496 147,496 -
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 161,882 $ 161,882 3 177,548 $ 15,666
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

FIRE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budgst
Budgeted Amounis GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis {Negative}
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 50,500 50,500 52,257 1,757
Licenses and Permils - - - -
Federal Sources 54,000 54,000 50,844 (3,156)
State Scurces - - - -
Local Sources - - - -
Charges for Services 17,500 17,500 18,913 1,413
Fines and Forfeils - - - "
Interest and Rents - - - -
Other Revenue - - 1,633 1,633
TOTAL REVENUES 122,000 122,000 123,647 1,647
EXPENDITURES:;
Legislative - - - -
Judicial - “ - -
Elections - - - -
Generat Government - - - -
Pubiic Safety 38,960 38,960 44 158 (5,198)
Public Works - - - -
Mealth and Welfare 14,760 14,700 7,609 7,091
Community and Economic Development - - - -
Recreation and Culture - - - -
Other Functions - - - -
Capital Outtay - - 52,410 (52,4103
Debt Service 10,000 10,000 9,608 392
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 63,660 63,660 113,785 {50,125)
EXCESS OF REVENUES QOVER
(UNDER} EXPENDITURES 58.340 58,340 9,862 (48,478)
QOTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
Loan proceeds - - - -
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers (out) - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SQURCES {USES) - - - -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 58,340 58,340 2,862 {48,478}
Fund balance, beginning of year 66,638 86,638 66,838 -
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 124 978 124,978 76,500 {48,478)
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TOWNEHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
PARK FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Armnounts GAAP Positive
Qriginal Final Basis {Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes 3 12,000 8 12,000 % 13777 & 1,777
Licenses and Permiis - - - -
Federal Sources - - - -
Siate Sources - - - -
Local Sources - - - -
Charges for Services - - - -
Fines and Forfeits - - - -
Interest and Rents 500 500 150 (350)
Other Revenue - - 327 327
TOTAL REVENUES 12,500 12,500 14,254 1,754
EXPENDITURES:
Legislative - - - -
Judicial - - - -
Elections - - - -
General Government - - - -
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Health and Welfare - - - -
Community and Economic Development - - - -
Recreation and Culture 12,500 12,500 11,410 1,080
Other Functions - - . -
Capital Outlay - - - -
Debt Service - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,500 12,500 11,410 1,090
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER} EXPENDITURES - - 2,844 2,844
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (JUSES):
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers {out} - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES} - - - -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 2,844 2,844
Fund balance, beginning of year 14,042 14,042 14,042 -
FLUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 3§ 14042 3 14042 % 16,886 § 2,844
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
BUILDING FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Eaded March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis {Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes 3 53,866 $ 53,865 3 45,203 $ (8,863)
Licenses and permits - - - -
Federal sources - - - -
State sources - - - -
Local sources - - - -
Charges for services - - - -
Fines and forfeits - - - -
Interest and rents - - - -
Cther revenues - - 8,664 6,664
TOTAL REVENUES 53,866 53,866 51,867 {1,999)
EXPENDITURES:
Legislative - - - -
Judicial - - - -
Llections - - - -
General services and administration 2,266 2,266 4,658 (2.382)
Public safety - - - -
Public works - - - -
Health and welfare - - - -
Community and economic deveiopment - - - -
Recreation and culture - - - -
Cther - - B -
Capital cutlay - - - -
Debt gervice 46,058 46,058 46,058 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48,324 48,324 50,716 {2,392)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES 5,542 5,542 1,151 (4,391)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers {out} {5,000} (5,000) - 5,000
TCTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (58,0003 {5,000} - 5,000
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 542 542 1,151 809
Fand balance, beginning of year 4,351 4,351 4,351 B
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR § 4,893 5 4,893 3 5,502 $ 609
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

GARBAGE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Yesar Ended March 31, 2007

REVENUES:

Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Federal Sources
State Sources

Locatl Sources
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Interest and Rents
Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Legislative

Judicial

Elections

General Government
Public Safety

Public Works

Health and Welfare
Commumnity and Economic Development
Recreation and Culture
Other Functions
Capital Outlay

Debt Service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers {out)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts GAAF Positive
Original Final Basis {Negative)
$ 51300 3 51,300 8 53300 S 2,080
7,200 7,200 22,681 15,481
- - 10,130 16,130
58,500 58,500 86,201 27,701
59,500 59,500 75,218 (15,716)
58,500 59,500 75,216 {15,716)
{1,600) {1,000) 10,885 11,985
{1,000 {1,000 10,985 11,885
76,333 76,333 76,333 -
b 75,333 & 75333 § B7318 & 11,985

39



Other Supplemental
Information

40



TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGANIME, MICHIGAN
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended Margh 31, 2007

“ariance with

Actuat Final Budget
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis {Negative)
REVEMNUES:
Property Taxas:
Current levy $ 62000 § 73,641 3 11.641
Delinguent taxes - 4913 4,913
Commercial foresi reserve 7,100 3,423 {3,677)
Swarnp tax 6,100 6,095 (5)
Tax collection fees 11,300 14,242 2,842
Total Property Taxes 86,500 102,314 15,814
Licensing and Permits:
Zoning 500 280 (220)
Dog license - 80 20
Total Licensing and Permits 500 370 {130)
Federal Sources:
Granis - 12,584 12 584
Total Federal Sources - 12,584 12,584
State Scurces:
Siate revenue sharing 29,800 29,129 (671)
Total State Scurces 29,800 20,129 (871)
Charges for Services:
Burial 5,000 3,499 {1,501)
Miscellangous services 300 1,802 1,502
Total Charges for Services 5,300 5,301 1
Interest and Renis:
Interest 2,000 9,115 7.115
Renis 500 350 {150}
Total interest and Rents 2,500 9 485 6,065
Other Revenues:
Miscelianeous other 9,764 31,732 21,968
Total Other Revenues 9,764 31,732 21,968
TOTAL REVENUES 134,364 190,895 56,531
EXPENDITURES:
Legislative:
Township Board:
Personnel services 8,800 5113 3,487
Supplies 1,500 2,810 {1,310)
Other services and charges 5700 5,029 871
Tolal Legislative 15,800 12,952 2,848
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Yariance with

Actual Final Budget
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis {Negative)
General Government
Supervisor:
Personnel services 3 7,200 3 8,510 $ 690
Supplies - - -
Other services and charges - 335 (335}
Total Supervisor 7,200 6,845 355
Elections:
Personnel services 2,000 1,564 436
Suppiies - 1,263 {1,263)
Other services and charges - 528 (528)
Total Elections 2,000 3,355 (1,355}
Assessor
Personnel services 4,000 9,549 {5,549)
Supplies - 295 (295)
Other services and charges - - -
Total Assessor 4,000 9,844 {5,844)
Clerk:
Parsonnel services 7.100 5041 159
Supplies - - -
Other services and charges - 3,147 {3,147)
Total Cierk 7,100 10,088 {2,088)
Board of Review:
Personnel services 8060 740 60
Supplies - 70 {70}
Other services and charges - 510 (510)
Total Board of Review 800 1,320 (520)
Treasurer:
Personnel services 7.000 8,510 480
Supplies 2,100 - 2,100
Other services and charges - 220 {220}
Total Treasurer 9,100 8,730 2,370
Township Hall and Grounds:
Personnel services 17,500 21,283 (3,793)
Supplies 3,664 8,601 (2,937)
Other services and charges 16,200 49,873 (33,673}
Total Township Hall and Grounds 37,364 TII67 (40,403}
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Cemetery
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total Cemeiery

Total Generai Government

Public Works
Streetlights
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Totat Streetlights

Total Public Works

Community and Economic Development
Planning Commissicn
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total Planning Commission

Total Community and Economic Development

Recreation and Culture
Senior Center
Personnel services
Suppiies
Other services and charges
Total Senior Center

Library
Personnel services
Suppiies
Other services and charges
Total Library

Museum
Parsonnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total Museum

Total Recreation and Culture

Wariance with

Actuat Finai Budget
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative)
3 7,000 4,153 2,847
- 695 {695)
- 796 {796)
7,000 5,644 1,356
74,564 121,583 (47,029
8,000 7,835 165
8,000 7,835 165
8,000 7,835 165
1,500 1,548 (48)
- 1,164 (1,164)
1,500 2,712 (1,212)
1,500 2712 (1,212)
800 - 80c
- 840 {940)
800 940 {140)
2,700 232 2,458
- 3,649 (3,648)
2,700 3,881 {1,181)
3,000 419 2,581
- 43 (43)
- 2,693 (2,693)
3,000 3,155 {155)
6,500 7,976 {1,476}

43



TOWNSHIF OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Capital Outlay
Elections
Totat Capital Outlay

Other Expenditures
Payroll taxes
Insurance
Pension
Total Other Expenditures

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in:
Transfers (out):
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund baiance, beginning of year

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Finai GAAF Positive
Budget Basis {Negative)
3 - 12,584 {12,584)
- 12,584 (12,584)
9,000 928 8,072
18,000 16,197 1,803
27,000 17,125 9,875
133,364 182,777 (49,413}
1,000 8,118 7,118
1,000 8,118 7,118
79,721 79,721 -
$ 80,721 87,839 7,118
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

ROAD FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative}
REVENUES:
Property Taxes:
Currently levy $ 21,674 3 24 755 3,081
Delinquent taxes - 1,852 1,652
National forest 2,812 2,684 (248)
Commercial forest reserve 2,300 1,148 {1,152}
Total Property Taxes 28,886 30,219 3,333
State Sources:
Metro act - 1,186 1,186
Total State Sources - 1,188 1,186
QOther Revenue:
Reimbursements - 458 458
Total Other Revenue - 458 458
TOTAL REVENUES 26,886 31,863 4977
EXPENDITURES:
Public Works:
Road:
Personnel services 2,000 1,148 854
Supplies - 116 (1186)
Other services and charges 10,560 549 8,851
Capital outlay - - -
Total Road 12,500 1,811 10,689
Total Public Works 12,500 1,811 10,689
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,500 1,811 10,689
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES 14,386 30,052 15,666
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - -
Transfers (out) - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 14,386 30,052 15,666
Fund balance, beginning of year 147,496 147,496 -
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 3 161,882 $ 177,548 15,666
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGANME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FIRE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis {Negative)
REVENUES:
Property Taxes:
Current fevy $ 44,900 3 48,946 3 2,048
Delinquent taxes - 3,132 3132
Commercial forest reserve 5,600 2,179 {3,421)
Totat Property Taxes 50,500 52,2587 1,757
Federal sources:
Grants 54,000 50,844 (3,158}
Total State Sources 54,000 50,844 (3,156}
State sources:
Grants - - -
Total State Sources - - -
Charges for services:
Fire services 10,800 12,670 1,870
EMS services 6,700 6,243 (457}
Total Charges for Services 17,500 18,913 1,413
Other Revenue:
Cther Revenue - 1,633 1,833
Total Other Revenues - 1,633 1,633
TOTAL REVENUES 122,000 123,647 1,647
EXPENDITURES:
Public Safetly:
Fire Department:
Personnel services 8,260 13,160 (3,880)
Supplies 2,300 3111 (811)
Other services and charges 27,480 27,887 {427)
Total Fire Depariment 38,960 44 158 (5,198)
Total Public Safety 3 38,960 5 44,158 $ (5,198)
Health and Welfare:
EMS Department:
Pergonnel services 1,300 1,201 29
Supplies 4,050 2,158 1,892
(Other services and charges 9,350 4,250 5,10C
Total EMS Department 14,700 7,609 7,091
Total Health and Welfare 14,700 7,508 7,081
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FIRE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

\ariance with

Actual Finai Budgst
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis {Negative)

Capital Cutlay:
Fire department 3 - $ 52,410 $ (52,410)
EMS depariment - - -
Total Capital Outlay - £2.410 (52,410)

Debt Service:
Principal 6,40C 6,082 338
interest 3,600 3,545 54
Total Debt Service 10,000 9,608 392
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 63,860 113,785 (5C,125)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 58,340 9,862 {48,478)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Loan proceeds - - -
Transfers in - - -
Transfers (ouf) - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) - - -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 58,340 $,862 {48,478}
Fund balance, beginning of year 66,638 66,638 -
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR % 124,978 3 76,500 3 (48,478)
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

PARK FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actuat Final Budget
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis {Negative)
REVENUES:
Property Taxes:
Currently levy $ 10,800 $ 12,378 1,578
Delinquent taxes - 826 826
Commercial forest reserve 1,200 573 {B27)
Total Property Taxes 12,000 13,777 1777
interest and Rents:
Rental 500 150 {350)
Total Interest and Rents 500 150 {350)
Qther Revenue:
Other Ravenue - 327 327
Total Other Revenues - 327 327
TOTAL REVENUES 12 500 14,254 1,754
EXPENDITURES:
Recreation and Culture:
Park:
Personnel services 5100 4,920 180
Supplies 1,650 404 1,248
Other services and charges 5,750 6,086 (338)
Capital outlay - - -
Total Park 12,500 11,410 1,090
Total Recreation and Cuiture 12,500 11,410 1,090
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,500 11,410 1,680
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES - 2,844 2,844
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - -
Transfers {out) - - .
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - 2,844 2,844
Fund balance, beginning of year 14,042 14,042 -
FUND BALAMNCE, END OF YEAR 3 14,042 3 16,888 2,844
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

BUILDING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Finai GAAP Positive
Budget Basis (Negative}
REVENUES:
Property Taxes:
Currently levy $ 45 366 3 40,611 (4,755)
Delinguent taxes - 2,709 2,708
Commercial forest reserve 8,500 1,883 (6,617)
Total Property Taxes 53 866 45,203 {8,663)
Other Revenue:
Reimbursements - 5,664 6,664
Total Cther Revenues - 6,564 6,664
TOTAL REVENUES 53,868 51,867 (1,899}
EXPENDITURES:
General Government:
Building:
Personnel services - - -
Supplies - - -
COther services and charges 2,266 4,658 (2,392)
Capital outlay - - -
Taotal Buitding 2,268 4 658 (2,392)
Total Generai Government 2,266 4,658 (2,392)
Capital Cutlay:
Building - - -
Total Capital Qutlay - - -
Debt Service:
Principat 24,593 24,593 -
interest 21,465 21,465 -
Total Capital Outiay 46,058 45,058 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48,324 50,716 {2,392}
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER} EXPENDITURES 5,542 1,151 {4,391}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - “ -
Transfers (out} (5,000) - {5,000}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) (5,000) - {5,000}
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 542 1,181 809
Fund balance, beginning of year 4,351 4,351 -
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 3 4 893 3 5,502 509
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

GARBAGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Final GAAP Positive
Budget Basis {Negative)
REVENUES:
Properiy Taxes:
Currently levy $ 46,000 3 47,966 $ 1,068
Delinquent taxes - 3,200 3,200
Commerciai forest reserve 5,300 2,224 (3,076}
Total Property Taxes 51,300 53',390 _ 2,080
Charges for Services
Republic Township 5,200 5,2G0 “
Church Camps 1,500 1,650 150
Caontractors - 15,573 15,573
Recycling - - -
Landfili tickeis 500 258 {242)
Total Charges for Services 7,200 22,681 15,481
Other Revenues:
Reimbursements - 10,130 10,130
Total Other Revenues - 10,130 13,130
TOTAL REVENUES 58,500 86,201 27,701
EXPENDITURES:
Public Works:
Sanitation:
Personnel services 13,200 18,248 (5,048)
Supplies 600 2,494 (1,894)
Other services and charges 38,200 54,474 {16,274}
Capital outlay 7,500 - 7.500
Totai Sanitation 59,500 75,218 {15,716)
Total Public Works 59,500 75,216 (15,716)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 59,500 75,216 (15,716}
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES {1,000) 10,885 11,985
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - -
Transfers (out} - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) - - -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {1,000} 10,885 11,885
Fund balance, beginning of year 76,333 76,333 -
FUND BALANGE, END OF YEAR $ 75,333 5 87,318 3 11,985
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TOWNSHIP OF MICHIGAMME, MICHIGAN

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds
Due to others

TOTAL LIABILITIES

March 31, 2007

Trust and Tax
Agency Collection
Fund Fund Total

3 661 3 12,263 12,924
1,755 - 1,755

2,416 12,283 14,679

- 12,263 12,263

2,416 - 2,416

% 2,416 3 12,263 14,679

81



Compliance Supplements

52



?5 ?Ay %@@s MICHIGAHN

ESCANABA

ON, TACKNMAI o
CERTIFIED PURBLIC ACCOUNTAR RO MOUNTAIN
KINROSS
PARTHERS . MARGUETTE
JOMY W, BLEMBERG, CPA EOBERT 1. DOWNS, CPA, C¥A DANIZL B, MIANCHI, TPA WISCONSIN

CREEN BAY
MILWAUKEE

(98]

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Supervisor and Township Board of Trustees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

PO Box 220

Michigamme, Michigan 49861

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each maior fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of
Michigamme, Michigan as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007, and have issued our
report thereon dated September 20, 2007. We conducted our audit in accordance with
ouditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Township of Michigamme, Michigan’s
internat control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan’s internal
confrol over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan's internal control over financial
reporting.

Qur consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily ideniify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we idenfified certain deficiencies in intemat confrol
over financial reporting tat we consider 1o be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control deoes not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combinaiion of confrol deficiencies, that adversely affects the Township of
Michigamme, Michigan's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data
refiably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more
than o remote likelihood that a misstaterment of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan's
financial that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Township
of Michigamme, Michigan's internal control. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying report to management fo be significant deficiencies in internat control over
financial reporting as items 07-01 and 07-C2.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
resulls in more than a remote likelihood that a material missiaiement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the Township of Michigamme, Michigan's infernal conirol.
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To the Supervisor and Township Board of Trustees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

Qur consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragroph of this section and would not necessarily identify ait deficiencies
in the internal confrol that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered fo be material
weaknesses. However, we believe that none of the significant deficiencies described above is
a material wegkness.

Compilignce and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township of Michigamme,
Michigan's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of ifs
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounis. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The resulis of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Governmental Auditing Standards and are described in the
accompanying report fo management as iterm 07-03.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee,
Township Board of Trustees, and federal awarding agencies and paoss-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Asidorsan, Tackman » Company, ZLC

Certified Public Accountanis

September 20, 2007
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Township of Michigamme, Michigan
Report to Management Letter
For the Year Ended March 31, 2007

To the Supervisor and Township Board of Trustees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

PO Box 220

Michigamme, Mi 49861

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Township of Michigamme, Michigan as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Township of
Michigamme, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of
Michigamme, Michigan's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Township of Michigamme, Michigan’s internal control.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that
there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness Is a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencies, that results
in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

QOur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and
would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider o be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified the following deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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To the Supervisor and Township Board of Trusiees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

07-01 - FINANCIAL REPORTING CYCLE

Condition/Criteria: The monthly and year end financial reporting package as presented to the Board
of Trustees is not fully compliant with generally accepted accounting principles. The general ledger is
recorded on the cash basis of accounting and not on the modified-accrual basis of accounting.

Effect: Because the accruals are not being recorded in the general ledger prior 1o the audit, the
financial statements are not compliant with generally accepted accounting principles.

Cause of Condition: Failure to record accruals in the general ledger.

Recommendation: We suggest that monthly and at year end, all accruals are recorded in the general
ledger.

Management Response — Corrective Action Plan:

= Contact Person(s) Responsible for Correction:
o Jean Howe, Clerk

= Corrective Action Planned:
o The Township is planning on starting to record accruals on a monthly basis in the

coming fiscal year.

= Anticipated Completion Date:

o March 31, 2008

07-02 - POOLED CASH

Condition/Criteria: The General Fund bank account is used to record all deposits and payments for
the General Fund and all of the Special Revenue Funds. However, the Special Revenue fund activity is
not properly aliocated to back to each fund on no less than a monthly basis.

Effect: The cash balance, income, and expenses in each of the Special Revenue Funds are not
properly stated and, as a result, may become materially misleading due to error or fraud.

Cause of Condition: Failure to record all bank activity in the Special Revenue Funds timely.

Recommendation: We recommend either opening separate bank accounts for each Special Revenue
fund or processing the pooled cash activity on no less than a monthly basis.

Management Response — Corrective Action Plan:
= Contact Person(s) Responsible for Correction:
o Carla Skytta, Treasurer
= Corrective Action Planned:
o The Township is considering action in the coming fiscal year.
s Anticipated Completion Date:
o March 31, 2008
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To the Supervisor and Township Board of Trustees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

INSTANCE OF NON-COMPLIANCE

07-03 (REPEATED) — UNIFORM BUDGETING AND ACCOUNTING ACT (PA621)

Condition/Criteria: Public Act821 of 1978, Section 18 (1) as amended, provides that fownships shall
not incur expenditures in excess of the amount appropriated. in the body of the financial statements,
the Township of Michigamme, Michigan had actual expenditures and budgeted expenditures for the
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds have been shown on a functional basis. The approved
budgets of these funds were adopted on an activity and/or program level. During the year ended March
31, 2007, the Township of Michigamme, Michigan incurred functional expenditures which were in
excess of the amounts appropriated as shown within the basic financial statements.

Effect: The Township of Michigamme, Michigan is not in compliance with State Law.
Cause of Condition: Failure to amend the budgets during the year based on the level of expenditures.

Recommendation: The Township of Michigamme, Michigan should strictly control expenditures in
each governmental fund so as not to exceed the original appropriation. When this is not possible, the
budget should be amended accordingly.

Management Response — Corrective Action Plan:

= Contact Person(s) Responsible for Correction:
o Jean Howe, Clerk

= Corrective Action Planned:
o The budget will be more closely monitored and budget amendments will be made

accordingly.

= Anticipated Completion Date:

o March 31, 2008

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the management, audit
committee, Township of Michigamme, Michigan Board of Trustees, and others within the organization,
and is not intended to be and should not be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

We appreciate and would like to thank the Township of Michigamme, Michigan’s staff for the

cooperation and courtesy extended to us during our audit. We would be pleased to discuss any
comments or answer any questions regarding our audit with you at your convenience.

#/&W/ff, me > &ﬂ/fW /?Jg
Certified Public Accountants

September 20, 2007
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September 20, 2007

To the Honorable Supervisor and
Members of the Township Board of Trustees
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

We have audited the financial statementis of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Township of Michigamme, Michigan for the year ended
March 31, 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated September 20, 2007, Professional standards require
that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated April 23, 2007, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Township of Michigamme, Michigan. Such
considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance
concerning such internaf control,

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of Township of Michigamme, Michigan's compiiance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an opinion on
compliance with such provisions.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by Township of Michigamme, Michigan are described in
Note A to the financial stalements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing
policies was not changed during 2006-2007. We noted no transactions entered into by Township of Michigamme,
Michigan during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we
are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
These estimates are relatively insignificant in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Audit Adjusimenis

For purposes of this lefter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction of the.
financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures.
An audit adjustment may of may not indicate matters that couid have a significant effect on the Township of
Michigamme, Michigan's financial reporting process (that is, cause future financial statements to be materially
misstated). In our judgment, none of the adjustments we proposed, whether recorded or unrecorded by the
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To the Honorable Supervisor and
Members of the Township Board of Trusiess
Township of Michigamme, Michigan

Township of Michigamme, Michigan, either individually or in the aggregate, indicate matlers that could have a
significant effect on the Township of Michigamme, Michigan’s financial reporting process.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether
or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Consuitations with Other [ndependent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
simiilar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principie to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, inciuding the appiication of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Township of Michigamme, Michigan's auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses
were not a condition to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board Trustees and management of the Township of
Michigamme, Michigan and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.
Very truly yours,

Aadenson, Tackman & Company, PLE

Certified Public Accountants



